
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


1 


 


Bjoin Park Master Plan 
July 2020 


 


  







 


2 


 


Contents 
Background ................................................................................................................................................... 3 


Existing Conditions .................................................................................................................................... 3 


Goals & Objectives ........................................................................................................................................ 8 


Public Input ................................................................................................................................................... 8 


2018 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan ....................................................................................... 8 


Park Survey ............................................................................................................................................. 10 


Neighborhood Meetings ......................................................................................................................... 15 


Draft Master Plan Feedback ................................................................................................................... 16 


Master Plan ................................................................................................................................................. 19 


Improvements & Representative Images ............................................................................................... 20 


Implementation Strategy ............................................................................................................................ 24 


Phasing .................................................................................................................................................... 24 


Phase I ................................................................................................................................................. 24 


Phase II ................................................................................................................................................ 24 


Phase III ............................................................................................................................................... 24 


Cost Estimates ......................................................................................................................................... 24 


Phase I Cost Estimates ........................................................................................................................ 24 


Phase II Cost Estimate ......................................................................................................................... 24 


Phase III Cost Estimates ...................................................................................................................... 24 


Appendix ..................................................................................................................................................... 25 


Park Survey Results ................................................................................................................................. 25 


Stakeholder Meeting Report ................................................................................................................... 59 


Draft Master Plan Survey Results ........................................................................................................... 61 


Existing Conditions Maps ........................................................................................................................ 66 


Master Plan ............................................................................................................................................. 70 


 


  







 


3 


 


Background  
In 1948, John H. Bjoin donated 7.2 acres of land for a public park. Prior to the land being donated, it is 
believed the area acted as camp for homeless during the Great Depression. The camp was known as 
Tramp Hollow and was ideal due to the proximity to the river for water and transportation via the 
railroad. Figure 1 below provides a historical look at how the land has been used since 1934.  


 


Existing Conditions  
Bjoin Park is classified as a neighborhood park. Neighborhood parks form the foundation of a local park 
system and serve as the recreational and social focus of the neighborhood. They generally range in size 







 


4 


 


from 5 to 10 acres; however, due to the available land within the city as well as the amenities provided 
sites as small as two acres in size can be appropriate for a neighborhood park.  


Neighborhood parks are designed for a ¼ to ½ mile radius of service. Concentrated intense recreation 
activities are common in these parks and they are usually designed within a limited amount of space. 
These parks serve residents in a variety of age groups. The park should be easily accessible and access 
should be uninterrupted by major roads or other barriers.  


Neighborhood park features include aesthetically designed play areas, picnic areas, splash pads, ball 
fields, skating, open space for field games, shelters, and walking paths. Typically, neighborhood parks do 
not provide off street parking; however, parking is usually necessary due to the scope of activities and 
size. Neighborhood park service levels are 1.0 to 2.0 acres per thousand people. 


City of Stoughton Park System – Neighborhood Parks 


• Bjoin Park, 7.2 acres 
• Dunkirk Park, 1.3 acres 
• East Side Park, 2.0 acres 
• Lowell Street Park, 2.0 acres 
• Nordic Ridge Park, 6.6 acres 
• Norse Park, 8.0 acres 
• Schefelker Park, 10.4 acres 
• Veteran’s Memorial Park, 3.9 acres 
• Virgin Lake Park, 7.0 acres 
• Westview Ridge Park, 5.1 acres  


The park is located north of Main Street. Main amenities include a youth baseball diamond, playground 
equipment, a shelter with restrooms, and horseshoe pits. In 2019 a half basketball court and tennis 
court were removed as they fell into disrepair.  


The park shelter and playground are in the middle of their lifecycles. The playground won’t need 
replacement for approximately 10 years. The ball diamond, horseshoe pits, and playground are located 
a fair distance from the road and do not have accessible routes to them. There is a non-functioning, 
inaccessible drinking fountain located on the southeastern edge of the park on Wilson St.   


The overall terrain of the site is fairly flat with some slopes on the northeastern part of the park. Bjoin 
Park is bordered by a railroad track to the east and a wetland. Due to the proximity to wetlands and 
associated water table, many areas of the site are wet or soggy, except during extended dry periods. 
This has made the ball diamond unusable by local youth sport associations and maintenance has been 
unable to mow in the outfield area. These areas correspond to the approximate locations of wetland 
indicators and hydric soils shown on the WI DNR Surface Water Data Inventory shown on page 7.  


 







 


5 


 


 







 


6 


 


 


 







 


7 


 


 







 


8 


 


Goals & Objectives 
The planning process was spurred by the tennis and basketball court replacement project. The cost for 
replacement was much higher than anticipated. The goal of the planning process is to identify the 
current use, remedy any issues with the park, and to meet the recreational needs of the neighborhood.  


Public Input 
2018 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan 
The 2018 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan (CORP) was prepared to guide the City of Stoughton 
in developing and maintaining public parks and outdoor recreation facilities. The CORP gathered survey 
data about park usage and what amenities are needed at parks. Bjoin Park was the third most 
frequented neighborhood park with approximately 18% of respondents indicating that park the most.    


 


 


Top 5 responses from 2018 CORP Public Survey 


 


The CORP also included a GIS Age Cohort Analysis that identified the age demographic in the City. This 
analysis was developed to help prioritize improvements based on the distribution of residents by age 
and the availability of recreation facilities by a geographic location. The map can be found on page 9.   







 


9 


 


 







 


10 


 


Park Survey  
Neighbors of the park were mailed a letter in September 2019 informing them that a planning process 
for the park was going to start. Neighbors of the park had the option to mail back the survey or 
complete it online. The survey was also posted on the department’s social media accounts and mailed to 
department’s customers. The survey asked general questions about the park including park usage, what 
they like and didn’t like about the park, and what improvements they would to see. 178 people 
completed the survey with 67 respondents who considered it their neighborhood park. Below are the 
responses from people who consider Bjoin Park their neighborhood park. Full survey results can be 
found in the appendix.  


 


 


 







 


11 


 


 


 


 


 







 


12 


 


 


 







 


13 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


14 


 


 


 


 


 







 


15 


 


 


Neighborhood Meetings 
Neighbors who responded to the survey were asked if they would be interested in attending meetings 
for more in-depth questions about the park. Meetings were held on Saturday, November 16, 2019 and 
Tuesday, November 19, 2019. 11 neighbors attended the meetings.  


Key Takeaways/Findings  


• Most people use the park as a connection to the Yahara River Trail. 
• There are many dog owners in the neighborhood and many walk them on the trail.  
• The baseball diamond has not been used in recent years due to wet conditions.  
• The greenspace near the corner of Grant St and Wilson St are used for practices by flag football 


teams. The greenspace was also used by neighbors for informal recreation like kite flying.  
• The horseshoe pits receive frequent play during the day.  
• The basketball court would see daily use when it was in better shape.  
• The tennis court would see less use than the basketball court, but it was used multiple times 


per week.  
• The park shelter is used frequently and the greenspace to the south is used for event tents.  
• The playground needs updating. There used to be swings on the north side of the park. They 


were removed years ago and never replaced.  
• Wildlife routinely visited the park and the neighbors liked viewing them. Wildlife included deer, 


raccoons, and cranes.  







 


16 


 


• The lack of lighting in the park has invited suspicious activity from occurring in the park. Areas 
identified include behind the park shelter and near the playground area.  


• Wet conditions and overgrown turf due to the wet conditions were identified as a dislike.  
• Stakeholders were in consensus that safety, amenity improvements, and restoration should be 


prioritized in that order.  


 


Draft Master Plan Feedback  
A Draft Master Plan was developed based on feedback from the neighborhood meetings that took place 
in November 2019 and the survey. The Draft Master Plan was then sent out to the neighborhood list via 
email. Neighbors were able to provide feedback via an online survey. A summary of the results is below. 
The complete Draft Master Plan Survey Results can be found in the appendix.  


The draft master plan was well received with the average score being in the 80s. The most liked features 
for the plan was the natural area, sport court, and a plan for the future of the playground. Neighbors felt 
that they would like to see an official crossing to the Yahara River Trail and upgraded playground 
equipment including swings. Some neighbors expressed concerns about light spill and glare with the 
identified park lighting. Overall, the plan was well received.  


 


 



Dan Glynn

I’m not sure if this is possible since it may require the railroad to install a gated crossing and there are concerns about ADA accessibility due to slopes.







 


17 


 


 


 


 







 


18 


 


 







 


19 


 


Master Plan 


  



Dan Glynn

Will insert revised plan based on feedback







 


20 


 


Improvements & Representative Images 
The improvements and representative images help provide examples of what the improvements will 
look over time. The Master Plan provides a road map to implementation of park features. The actual 
layout and detailing of the areas may change and adapt to other uses at the park changes over time.  


 


1. Park Entry Sign 


The current park entry sign would stay at its current 
location. The park entry sign adds in wayfinding and a 
sense of place. The current sign is of the same type as 
other parks.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


2. Memorial Monument  


The memorial monument provides a history of how the 
parkland was dedicated and where the name comes 
from.  


 


 


 


 


 







 


21 


 


 


3. Shelter and Restrooms  


Shelter and restrooms were identified as one of the top 
five wanted amenities in the 2018 CORP. The current 
shelter is in a good location with it being close to the 
road and providing a small open space for event tents. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


4. Horseshoe Pits 


The horseshoe pits at Bjoin Park are a unique amenity 
that gets regular use. They are identified to remain in 
place and may be removed if usage declines.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


5. Multi-Use Sport Court (Half Basketball/Tennis 
Backboard)  


The industry trend is to create multiple court 
complexes for social reasons and to create multi-
use courts for neighborhoods. The court would be a 
half court for basketball with a backstop for tennis 
practice.  


 


 







 


22 


 


 


6. Open Space with Backstop 


Convert the baseball diamond to an open space area with 
backstop. This will provide the neighborhood with enough 
space for informal recreation and require less fence line 
maintenance.   


 


 


 


 


 


 


7. Native Plantings  


The native plantings in the northern part of the park will be able to thrive in wet conditions. This will 
improve park aesthetics, reduce the amount of mowing, and provide for better habitat for insects. There 
would also be a mowed strip around the perimeter to protect the plantings from invasive species. The 
strip could be used as a nature trail.  


 


 


 


 


8. Playground   


The playground will be relocated closer to the street 
and the park shelter. This move will place the 
playground on drier ground and closer to restroom 
access. The new location also is in a shaded area.  


 


 


 


 


 


 







 


23 


 


 


 


9. Accessible Pathway  


The pathway will provide an accessible route for 
people with disabilities to get to park amenities like 
the multi-use sport court, restroom, and playground.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


10. ADA Compliant Drinking Fountain 


An ADA compliant drinking fountain with dog drinking 
area would be used by playground, sport court, and 
trail users. 


 


 


 


 


 


11. Solar Park Lighting  


Solar park lighting will make the park safer, will not 
require underground electrical wires to be buried, and 
utilizes a sustainable energy source.     







 


24 


 


Implementation Strategy 
The phasing recommendation provides guidelines on how the improvements can be implemented over 
time. Phasing is done in stages and factors in the lifespan of current amenities. Costs are shown in 2020 
numbers and future improvements will need to be adjusted for inflation.  


Phasing  
Phase I 
New multi-use sport court in the southern section of the park, install accessible pathway from the multi-
use sport court to the park shelter and restrooms, and install solar park lighting.  


Phase II 
Remove ball diamond fencing and bleachers, keep current backstop, and plant native vegetation in the 
northern area of the open space.   


Phase III 
Relocate playground to park shelter area, install accessible pathway connecting park shelter and 
restrooms to playground, and install ADA compliant drinking fountain.  


Cost Estimates 
Phase I Cost Estimates 
Multi-Use Sport Court    $13,000 
Accessible Pathway    $1,000 
Solar Park Lighting     $11,000 
Subtotal     $25,000 
Contingency (20%)    $5,000 
Total Cost Phase I     $30,000 
 


Phase II Cost Estimate  
Ball Diamond Removal    $0 
Native Plantings & Grow-In Program  $14,000 
Subtotal     $14,000 
Contingency (20%)    $2,800   
Total Cost Phase II    $16,800 
 


Phase III Cost Estimates 
Playground     $80,000 
Accessible Pathway    $2,000 
ADA Drinking Fountain    $8,000 
Subtotal     $90,000 
Contingency (20%)    $18,000 
Total Cost Phase III    $108,000  



Dan Glynn

This could all change. It is based on the draft plan.







 


25 


 


Appendix 
Park Survey Results 


 


 







 


26 


 


 







 


27 


 







 


28 


 







 


29 


 







 


30 


 







 


31 


 







 


32 


 







 


33 


 







 


34 


 







 


35 


 







 


36 


 







 


37 


 







 


38 


 







 


39 


 







 


40 


 







 


41 


 







 


42 


 







 


43 


 







 


44 


 







 


45 


 







 


46 


 







 


47 


 







 


48 


 







 


49 


 







 


50 


 







 


51 


 







 


52 


 







 


53 


 







 


54 


 







 


55 


 







 


56 


 







 


57 


 







 


58 


 


 


 







 


59 


 


 


Stakeholder Meeting Report 


 







 


60 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  







 


61 


 


Draft Master Plan Survey Results


 







 


62 


 







 


63 


 







 


64 


 


 


 







 


65 


 


 


  







 


66 


 


Existing Conditions Maps 


  


 







 


67 


 


 







 


68 


 


 







 


69 


 


 


 


 


  







 


70 


 


Master Plan  







 


71 


 







 


72 


 


 





		Background

		Existing Conditions



		Goals & Objectives

		Public Input

		2018 Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan

		Park Survey

		Neighborhood Meetings

		Draft Master Plan Feedback



		Master Plan

		Improvements & Representative Images



		Implementation Strategy

		Phasing

		Phase I

		Phase II

		Phase III



		Cost Estimates

		Phase I Cost Estimates

		Phase II Cost Estimate

		Phase III Cost Estimates





		Appendix

		Park Survey Results

		Stakeholder Meeting Report

		Existing Conditions Maps

		Master Plan








Director’s Report 
July 2020 


 


COVID-19/Operations   


- Worked with Lunches for Vikings volunteers for sanitizing and use of building 
- Attended conference call with public health about parks and recreation programming   
- Attended City re-opening meeting with department heads who oversee buildings  
- We re-opened the Youth Center on June 28th. However, due to the recent spike in cases, the 


Youth Center Manager and myself agreed to close the building the week of July 13. We will be 
offering curbside snack and virtual meetings.  


- We were shorthanded twice this month due to COVID-19.  
- Created and posted soccer specific signs for Virgin Lake Park to address the neighbors’ concerns 


over large groups playing there.  
- Attended Dane County Public Health COVID-19 meeting regarding the new order.  
- Attended Wisconsin Parks and Recreation Association meeting where people around the state 


checked-in on the status of their operations.  


ADA Transition Plan 


- Met with MSA staff regarding the plan and their findings from the audit. The next step is to 
meet with Public Works staff regarding how we would like to address and phase the 
improvements.  


High School Baseball Diamond Light Removal Project 


- Met with a project manager from Hooper and school district staff about the removal. School 
district staff wanted the buried wiring removed when the lights are removed. This was unknown 
at the time of budgeting last year.  


- Went through our paper files to find items regarding the install of the lights. We do not have any 
as-builts of the lights. I found a hand sketch of the wiring which shows the wiring going from the 
light poles through the field and into the electrical box in the storage building behind home 
plate. It was initially believed that the wiring was buried in the conduit as an old sales slip for 
500 pieces of conduit was found, but a local electrical contractor looked at the lights and 
believes it was a direct bury where no conduit was used. I communicated this to school district 
staff to see what their expectations were regarding the wiring removal since it would require 
disturbing the playing surface.  


Riverfront Project 


- Hosted the steering committee meeting on 6/15 
- Answered questions regarding the park 
- Toured and documented conditions on the Yahara River in the Stoughton area and local areas 


that have experienced dam removals. There is a staggering difference in water quality in 
Stoughton and the places that have underwent dam removals. On 6/17 there was a substantial 
amount of algae floating down river in the city. The river in Rockdale and the Yahara River in 
Stebbensville were free of algae and water clarity was better.  


- Met with the Planning Director for coordination between Strand and REP for riverfront 
engineering work.  







Director’s Report 
July 2020 


- Sent an email to a UW professor who researches river restoration to see if he would like to 
attend the steering committee meeting in July.  


- Communicated with Chuck Ungs from Linn County, IA about attending the July steering 
committee meeting. He is a naturalist for Linn County, fisherman, and ACA certified whitewater 
paddler. 


- Met with DNR staff regarding permitting  
- Met with REP staff regarding design for Phase I improvements which include filling in the 


tailrace to create a plaza near the powerhouse, paddling improvements downstream of Fourth 
St, and hydraulic modeling needed for the pedestrian bridge.  


- Created a presentation for the Rivers & Trails Taskforce meeting.  
- Created a presentation on the budget for the Whitewater Park Steering Committee meeting.  


 


Rotary Park Project 


- Talked with the engineer from Strand and told them we would like to re-bid it in the fall.  
- We may end up acting as the general contractor on this and try to complete the site work this 


fall. We are hoping to use the contractor Stoughton Utilities is using for the lead pipe 
replacement to run the sanitary and water lines to the restroom. The utilities are buried 19 feet 
deep at the road, so it will hinge on if they want to do the work and if the cost is reasonable.  


Bjoin Park  


- Developed a draft master plan map that identified improvements based on feedback from 
survey and stakeholder meetings.  


- Met with the Public Works Director and Parks Maintenance Supervisor to go over the draft plan.  
- Sent the draft master plan to stakeholders for additional feedback. 
- Received costs for the solar lighting and prairie establishment 
- Completed the draft master plan report 
- Created an online survey for the draft master plan and sent the link to the neighbors 


Misc.  


- Completed the Youth Center’s monthly report for the County  
- Completed the Youth Center’s annual report with the Youth Center Manager 
- Attended an internal staff meeting about 51 West Subdivision project  
- Completed the 2021-2025 CIP Budget   
- Worked with garden volunteers regarding unkept plots  
- Assigned the four raised garden beds to gardeners on the wait list.  
- Had an internal staff meeting regarding the 51 North development  
- Sent the draft impact fee study to the City Attorney for review 
- Worked with the Recreation Supervisor to find a design for park water features. Two were built 


and installed at East Park and Bjoin Park. We decided on those parks so that water features 
were spread throughout the City.  


- Trained the Recreation Supervisor on how to use the City’s software system for budgeting.  







Director’s Report 
July 2020 


- Completed the operational budget for 2021. Based on conversations with other Parks & 
Recreation Directors and the Finance Director, the best course of action was to budget like we 
did for 2020 as there is a lot of unknown regarding COVID-19.  


 


 


 








PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  
 
Tuesday, June 16, 2020 at 6:00 pm  
 
This is a virtual meeting. Please use the information below to attend:  
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/130812285 You can also dial in using your phone. United States: +1 
(571) 317-3112 Access Code: 130-812-285  
 
Present: Alderpersons: Phil Caravello, Regina Hirsch, Ben Heili, Tim Riley, Mayor Tim 
Swadley and Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn  
 
 
Call to Order  
Meeting called to order at 6:00 pm.  
 
 
Approval of Minutes from May 19, 2020 and June 3, 2020  
Motion to approve minutes by; Heili seconded by Hirsch  
Motion carried unanimously  
 
Communication  
 
Director Glynn communicated the results of the meeting with Town of Pleasant Springs on 
6-11-20 and AdHoc Whitewater Steering Committee meeting on 6-15-20. 
 
Rotary Park Improvements Bid Selection (Discussion & Possible Action)  
Motion to Rebid the Rotary Park Project by; Hirsch seconded by Riley  
Motion carried unanimously 
 
Future Agenda Items  
 
Park Design Guidelines  
Bjoin Park Improvements 
Recreation Update 
Review Whitewater Grants/Timelines 
 
 
 
Motion to adjourn by Heili seconded by Riley  
Motion carried unanimously at 6:23 pm. 
 








 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  
Notice is hereby given that the Parks and Recreation Committee of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location 
given below. 


 


Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Members: 
 
CC: 


PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Tuesday, July 21, 2020 at 6:00 pm 
This is a virtual meeting. Please use the information below to attend: 
7-21-20 Parks & Recreation Committee Meeting  
Tue, Jul 21, 2020 6:00 PM - 8:00 PM (CDT)  
 
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.  
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/167645757  
 
You can also dial in using your phone.  
United States: +1 (872) 240-3412  
 
Access Code: 167-645-757  
 
Regina Hirsch, Phil Caravello, Ben Heili, Tim Riley, Tim Swadley 
 
Attorney Matt Dregne, Department Heads, Stoughton Newspapers,  
Judi Krebs, Pat Groom, Sarah Monette, Jon Lewis, Bob Diebel, Desi Weum, 
Council Members 


 
Item #   CALL TO ORDER 
1   Call to Order    
 
2 Approval of Minutes from June 16, 2020 
 
3 Communication  
 Director’s Report  
 Recreation Update  
  
Item #   OLD BUSINESS     
4   Bjoin Park Draft Master Plan (Discussion & Possible Action) 
 
5   Yahara Riverfront Project Update (Discussion) 
 
Item #   NEW BUSINESS      
6   Future Agenda Items    
   Park Design Guidelines  
         
Item #   ADJOURNMENT  








Yahara Riverfont Project 
Financial Pathways 







Two Paths 


1. “State” Grant Funding Only


2. Federal & State Grant Funding







“State” Grant Funding Path – Phases 
Phase I – Redevelopment Site Improvements
• Pedestrian Bridge – Mandt Park to Redevelopment Site 
• Shoreline Restoration – Redevelopment Site 
• Pedestrian Trail – 7th St to 4th St 


Phase II – Whitewater Park Area Improvements 
• Whitewater Features 
• Dam Removal 
• Pedestrian Plazas & Seating Areas 
• Shoreline Restoration 
• Millpond Remediation & Restoration 
• Pedestrian Trail – 4th St to Water St







“State” Grant Funding Path - Phase I Items & 
Timeline  


Items
• Pedestrian Bridge – Redevelopment Site to Mandt Park 
• Shoreline Restoration – Redevelopment Site 
• Pedestrian Trail – 7th St to 4th St


Timeline 
• July & August 2020 – Preliminary Design & Engineering 
• September & October 2020 – Detailed Design & Permitting 
• November & December 2020 – Construction Documents 
• January & February 2021 – Project Bidding & Contractor Selection 
• April – October 2021 – Construction 







Item Cost Grant Funding Local Funding


Pedestrian Bridge $546,368 $546,368 $0


Shoreline Restoration $243,340 $121,671 $121,669


Pedestrian Trail $278,739 $137,770 $137,770


Total $1,068,447 $946,778 $259,439


Grants
WEDC Idle Sites (Acquired) - $500,000
2019 WDNR Stewardship (Acquired) - $168,980
2020 WDNR Land Water Conservation Fund (Pending – Late Summer) - $138,429







“State” Grant Funding Path - Phase II Items & 
Timeline  


Items
• Whitewater Features 
• Dam Removal 
• Pedestrian Plazas & Seating Areas 
• Shoreline Restoration 
• Millpond Remediation & Restoration 
• Pedestrian Trail – 4th St to Water St


Future Timeline 
• September 2020 – September 2021 – Detailed Design & Permitting
• November & December 2021 – Construction Documents 
• January & February 2022 – Project Bidding & Contractor Selection 
• April – October 2022 – Construction 







Item Cost Grant Funding Local Funding


Whitewater 
Features


$1,397,978 $698,989 $698,989


Dam Removal $562,021 $400,000 $162,021


Plazas, Trails, & 
Underpass


$1,480,996 $740,498 $740,498


Millpond 
Restoration & 
Remediation


$425,000 $212,500 $212,500


Total $3,865,995 $2,051,987 $1,814,008


Grants
2020 WDNR Municipal Dam Program (Pending) - $400,000
2021 WDNR Land Water Conservation Fund (To be applied for) - $1,439,487
2022 WDNR Municipal Flood Control (To be applied for) - $212,500


“State” Grant Funding Path - Budget







Federal & State Grant Funding Path – Phases 
Phase I – Redevelopment Site Improvements
• Pedestrian Bridge – Mandt Park to Redevelopment Site 
• Shoreline Restoration – Redevelopment Site 
• Pedestrian Trail – 7th St to 4th St 


Phase II – Whitewater Park Area Improvements 
• Whitewater Features 
• Dam Removal 
• Pedestrian Plazas & Seating Areas 
• Shoreline Restoration 
• Millpond Remediation & Restoration 
• Pedestrian Trail – 4th St to Water St


Phase III – Mandt Park Improvements 
• East & West Parking Lots 
• Looped Trail System & Shoreline Naturalization
• New Roadway System
• Pedestrian Bridge – Jefferson Street







Federal & State Grant Funding Path – Budget





		Yahara Riverfont Project �Financial Pathways 

		Two Paths 

		“State” Grant Funding Path – Phases 

		“State” Grant Funding Path - Phase I Items & Timeline  

		Slide Number 5

		“State” Grant Funding Path - Phase II Items & Timeline  

		Slide Number 7

		Federal & State Grant Funding Path – Phases 

		Slide Number 9



